
#  Final RFP 

Section

Subject/Title Industry Comment/Question Response

1 B.3(b) TRANSITION COST, 

ANTICIPATED FUNDING, 

AND TOTAL AVAILABLE 

PERFORMANCE FEE

Why is "a portion of significant subcontractor costs" excluded from the Estimated Annual Fee 

Base"  All Subcontractor costs should be allowable and permitted to have fee applied at the 

Prime level.  Please clarify what this means?

Per DEAR 970.1504-1-7, Fee Base, subparagraph (b)(2) and (3) at least 20%-100% of subcontract costs are excluded from the fee base, depending on 

whether they are of such magnitude or nature as to distort the technical and management effort actually required by the Offeror/Contractor or not.

2 B.5 DOE-B-7006 PROVISIONAL 

PAYMENT OF 

PERFORMANCE FEE (SEP 

2017)

(REVISED)

When will the Government advise if Provisional Performance Fee payments are approved?  Pursuant to DOE-B-7006, Provisional Payment of Performance Fee, the Contracting Officer anticipates authorizing provisional fee payments. The amount 

(percentage) of provisional fee authorized is anticipated to be based on the fee amount that the Contracting Officer expects the Contractor to earn based 

on project performance data and limitations specified. 

3 B.5 DOE-B-7006 PROVISIONAL 

PAYMENT OF 

PERFORMANCE FEE (SEP 

2017)

(REVISED)

What performance fee % and frequency of payment will provisional performance payments be 

made?  We would suggest 75% of the total annual performance fee pool to be invoiced on a 

monthly basis.

Pursuant to DOE-B-7006, Provisional Payment of Performance Fee, the Contracting Officer anticipates authorizing provisional fee payments. The amount 

(percentage) of provisional fee authorized is anticipated to be based on the fee amount that the Contracting Officer expects the Contractor to earn based 

on project performance data and limitations specified. 

4 B.5 DOE-B-7006 PROVISIONAL 

PAYMENT OF 

PERFORMANCE FEE (SEP 

2017)

(REVISED)

If the Government does not approve provisional performance fee payment, when will the 

Contractor be entitled to received performance fee payments?  At the end of each year?

Pursuant to DOE-B-7006, Provisional Payment of Performance Fee, as stated in this RFP, within Section B.5: "Earned fee for the Performance Based 

Incentives specified in the Performance Evaluation and Measurement Plan(s) and Cost, Schedule and Management Award Fee criteria is provisional until 

the line item capital asset projects 15-D-411 Safety Significant Confinement Ventilation System (SSCVS), 15-D-412 and Utility Shaft (US) project) projects 

are both complete." Other objective criteria fee will be determined and earned annually in accordance with the approved Performance Evaluation 

Measurement Plan (PEMP). 

5 H.5(d)(1)(A) DOE-H-2001 EMPLOYEE 

COMPENSATION: PAY AND 

BENEFITS (OCT 2017)

Please provide a list of incumbent and TRIAD employees in accordance with RFP clause 

h.5(d)(1)(A) so that bidders can ensure our pricing reflects these salaries.

Proposed pricing will not encompass any incumbent employees or TRIAD employees.

6 H.5(d)(1)(B) DOE-H-2001 EMPLOYEE 

COMPENSATION: PAY AND 

BENEFITS (OCT 2017)

Are all Incumbent employees performing under one of the provided CBA agreements? If not, 

please provide the pension and other benefits the Incumbent employees are receiving to 

ensure compliance with this clause.

Incumbent employees include those covered by one of the two CBAs and other employees (e.g., exempt employees are generally not covered by a CBA). 

Since proposed pricing does not include incumbent employees, the information requested is not required to bid.

7 H.6(a) SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

APPLICABLE TO 

WORKFORCE TRANSITION 

AND EMPLOYEE 

COMPENSATION: PAY AND 

BENEFITS

Please provide a list of all incumbent employees to include salary and years of service. Proposed pricing will not encompass any incumbent employees.

8 H.6(b) SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

APPLICABLE TO 

WORKFORCE TRANSITION 

AND EMPLOYEE 

COMPENSATION: PAY AND 

BENEFITS

If the Contracting Officer does not approve the compensation for Key Personnel what will 

occur?

If the Key Personnel salary is not approved in its entirety, then only that portion that is approved will be reimbursed by DOE.

9 H.11 Labor Standards Please provide the associated Wage Determinations. Applicable wage determinations are included in Section J-9 of the RFP.

10 H.13(a) H.13 DOE-H-2073 RISK 

MANAGEMENT AND 

INSURANCE PROGRAMS 

(DEC 2014)

What does "other third-party liability insurance" constitute? This is any additional liability coverage that the Offeror may propose, to provide protection from third-party claims that may be applicable to the contract. 

11 H.17(b) DOE-H-7002 LONG-RANGE 

PLANNING, PROGRAM 

DEVELOPMENT AND 

BUDGETARY 

ADMINISTRATION (SEP 

2017)

What is the timing of the Long Range Annual Plan to be submitted by the Contractor. Section J, Attachment J-6, Contract Deliverables List, will be amended to add a deliverable entitled: "Long Range Plan" pursuant to Section H clause, 

entitled: "DOE-H-7002 Long-Range Planning, Program Development, and Budgetary Administration," which will contain an annual due date of 8/31.

12 H.23 DOE-H-7014 STANDARDS 

OF CONTRACTOR 

PERFORMANCE 

EVALUATION (SEP 2017)

1.  What is the term of the evaluation period identified in clause H.23(a)(1)?  

2. What is the timing on when the Government and Contractor will establish the performance 

goals and indicators for the next performance evaluation period? (i.e. will goals be established 

3 months prior to end of the current evaluation period?)

For the awarded contract, PEMP's will be developed annually.  The PEMP will be provided to the Contractor 30 days prior to the evaluation period in 

accordance with Section I,  DEAR 970.5215-1. 

13 H.23(a)(3) DOE-H-7014 STANDARDS 

OF CONTRACTOR 

PERFORMANCE 

EVALUATION (SEP 2017)

What are the "other external organization" that Contractor will be working with? Other external organization examples may be other DOE prime contractors or support services contractors.

Waste Isolation Pilot Plant (WIPP) Management and Operating (M&O) Acquisition Final Request for Proposals (RFP) , Industry Questions and Answers

Solicitation Number 89303320REM000077

Posting No. 1, Questions 1 –  95



14 H.23(c) DOE-H-7014 STANDARDS 

OF CONTRACTOR 

PERFORMANCE 

EVALUATION (SEP 2017)

Within Clause DEAR 970.5203-1-Management Control it indicates "The systems of controls 

employed by the Contractor shall be documented and satisfactory to DOE."  What are the 

criteria of a satisfactory system of controls for DOE?

The verbatim phrase cited in the question is found in DEAR 970.5203-1, Management Controls, paragraph (a) (2). The remainder of DEAR 970.5203-1, 

paragraphs (a) (1, 3, and 4), and (b), describe management controls, their relationship to activities, and the requirement of periodic reviews.

Criteria for establishing systems and controls can be found in DOE Order 414.1D, Quality Assurance, and DOE O 520.1B, Financial Management and Chief 

Financial Officer Responsibilities, which are listed in Attachment J-1.

To view all criteria for establishing and rating performance, see both Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 16.4, Incentive Contracts — the basis 

for the Performance Evaluation Measurement Plan (PEMP) as called for in this RFP’s Section I, within Clause I.183, entitled “DEAR 970.5203-1, 

Management Controls” — and FAR Subpart 42.15, Contractor Performance Information.

15 General Please confirm that during the transition period the Contractor will be entitled to perform an 

environmental assessment of the site and any findings or issues will be handled by the 

outgoing Contractor or Government and not be the responsibility of the incoming Contractor.

As stated in Section C.1.0 of the RFP, “The Contractor shall perform all activities to support transition, including a due diligence review; system walk-

downs; procurement; review and acceptance of programmatic and operational documents and procedures.”  This is to include an environmental 

assessment of the site.  The Offerors should not, however, assume that any findings or issues will be handled by the outgoing Contractor or the 

Government.

16 H.45 DOE-H-2034 CONTRACTOR 

INTERFACE WITH OTHER 

CONTRACTORS AND/OR 

GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES 

(OCT 2014) (REVISED)

Please provide a list of all contracts to include a brief description of scope that currently 

support WIPP.

DOE-CBFO prime contracts include:

•	Carlsbad Technical Assistance Contract - technical support to the DOE-Carlsbad Field Office.

•	WIPP Transportation Services - Transuranic Waste Shipper

•	TRANSCOM Technical Support Services - Manages/maintains the system for tracking of and communications with the drivers of the Transuranic waste 

shipments

Prime contracts with NNSA managed by CBFO through local financial agreements:

•	Los Alamos National Laboratory – Carlsbad Operations – Provides scientific advisory expertise to CBFO regarding Transuranic waste

•	Sandia National Laboratory – Carlsbad Programs Group – Provides scientific advisory expertise to CBFO regarding the WIPP repository performance 

assessment.

17 H.47 DOE-H-2043 ASSIGNMENT 

AND TRANSFER OF PRIME 

CONTRACTS AND

SUBCONTRACTS (OCT 

2014) (REVISED)

Should DOE transfer or assign current DOE prime contracts or subcontract to the WIP M&O 

Contractor, please confirm  the contractor will be entitled to seek an equitable adjust as a 

result of the change.

Any changes to the Estimated Annual Fee Base will be in accordance with the RFP’s Section B.3 as carried forward into the contract with its reference to 

FAR 52.243-2 “Changes – Cost Reimbursement.” 

18 H.55 DOE-H-2058 DESIGNATION 

AND CONSENT OF 

TEAMING SUBCONTRACTS

(OCT 2014) (REVISED)

Please confirm that Teaming Subcontractors included in the proposal will be accepted at 

award and will not require a separate CO consent after award.

Per section L.10(a)(2) of the RFP, Teaming Subcontractors are evaluated consistent with the terms of this solicitation and thus are not subject to post-

award subcontract consent pursuant to FAR 52.244-2.

19 H.79(B) H.79

ENERGY EMPLOYEES 

OCCUPATIONAL ILLNESS 

COMPENSATION

PROGRAM ACT (EEOICPA) 

OF 2000

Is the EEOICPA requirement applicable to the Task Order issued under the IDIQ CLIN or the 

entire program?

Clause H.79 will be updated and replaced in its entirety via an upcoming amendment to the RFP.

20 I.180 952.247-70 Foreign Travel Will Foreign Travel be required in performance of this effort?  If so, what OCONUS locations 

and scope of effort would be performed OCONUS.  If foreign travel is not expected, request 

removal of this clause.

Section J-1,  Requirements Sources and Implementing Documents, identifies Directive/Requirement  DOE O 550.1,  Chg 1, Official Travel, as a requirement 

for contract performance identified in Section C, Performance Work Statement. Section C.0.2 of the PWS will be revised in an upcoming amendment to 

include: “The Contractor shall periodically support conferences, workshops and symposiums to share knowledge, experiences, and lessons learned with 

national and international colleagues on the WIPP facility. International travel requires approval DOE approval in accordance with DOE O 550.1.”

21 L.17(1) PROPOSAL PREPARATION 

INSTRUCTIONS, VOLUME III 

– COST AND FEE PROPOSAL

Would the Government consider providing a plug number for all Bidders to use when 

proposing the transition cost of the Price proposal.  Having a plug number for this transition 

scope will ensure an "apples to apples comparison" of the transition cost and will also keep a 

level playing field among all bidders as the incumbent contractor will likely have zero or 

minimal costs to propose for transition, where other Bidders will have a full suite of transition 

costs.

DOE does not anticipate providing a plug number at this time.

22 L.18(b) DEAR 970.5215-5 

LIMITATION ON FEE (DEC 

2000)

Clause L.18(b) references fixed fee, however it is our understanding this is a 

award/performance fee contract.  What CLINs does the Government consider to be fixed fee?

Correct, this a Cost- Plus- Award- Fee contract. There are no fixed fee CLINs/tasks anticipated in the contract awarded from this solicitation; however, CLIN 

00013 - IDIQ Scope, set forth in Section B, may include Cost Plus Fixed Fee (CPFF) task orders during the contract period of performance if determined to 

be appropriate, and the limitation would apply. 

23 M.7 DOE-M-2012 BASIS FOR 

AWARD (OCT 2015)

Would the Government provide the adjectival ratings and description of rating for the 

Technical and Management Proposal evaluation?

The requested information will not be provided at this time and is considered to be Source Selection Information.

24 M.7 DOE-M-2012 BASIS FOR 

AWARD (OCT 2015)

Please confirm that each evaluation factor (Key Personnel, Past Performance and 

Management Approach) for the Technical and Management Proposal will receive a separate 

adjectival rating.

Yes, Key Personnel, Past Performance and Management Approach will receive a separate adjectival rating.

25 B.2 Type of Contract We recommend modification of the first paragraph for clarity, as follows: "This is a 

performance-based, Cost-Plus-Award-Fee (CPAF) Management and Operating (M&O) contract 

with an Indefinite-Delivery/Indefinite-Quantity (IDIQ) Contract Line Item Number (CLIN). DOE 

reserves the right, as pertains solely to the IDIQ CLIN,  to issue any Task Order types as 

needed."

 The reference is clear as originally stated. Task Orders can only be issued under the IDIQ CLIN pursuant to Section H.89, Task Ordering Procedure.

26 B.5 DOE-B-7006 PROVISIONAL 

PAYMENT OF 

PERFORMANCE FEE (SEP 

2017) (REVISED)

As written, the second paragraph implies that fee related to any PBIs for CLIN 00002 would be 

provisional until the capital asset projects 15-D-411 and 15-D-412 are completed. Does DOE 

expect that the PEMP will include PBIs associated with the work performed under CLIN 

00002? If so, please confirm that the paragraph noted above from Section B.5 means that the 

fee associated with those PBIs is provisional until completion of the identified capital projects.

Section B.5 applies only to Capital Asset Projects, CLINs 0009 through 00010.



27 H.47 DOE-H-2043 ASSIGNMENT 

AND TRANSFER OF PRIME 

CONTRACTS AND 

SUBCONTRACTS (OCT 

2014) (REVISED)

Section (a) provides DOE authority to assign contracts to the contractor and Section (c) 

requires the contractor to assume various existing subcontracts.  There can be existing and 

continuing disallowed costs or liabilities under these agreements as a consequence of 

predecessor mismanagement, or negligence, or willful misconduct.  While the successor 

should assume the agreements, it should not have to assume such disallowed costs or 

liabilities.  Request:  That it be made clear in Sections (a) and(c) that the assumption of the 

agreements specifically excludes existing and continuing disallowed costs or liabilities arising 

from the terms of the agreements or the acts or omissions of the predecessor contractor, 

regardless whether arising before or after the transfer.

Costs disallowed pursuant to FAR 52.242-1, Notice of Intent to Disallow Costs, are not “continued” in successor contracts. It is unclear which “liabilities” 

are being referenced. In any case, the structure of the resulting Cost-Plus-Award-Fee (CPAF) contract will not hold a successor contractor responsible for a 

previous contactor's performance. The successor contractor will be involved in the Performance Evaluation and Measurement Plan (PEMP) development 

process in accordance with H.23, “DOE-H-7014 Standards of Contractor Performance Evaluation,” paragraph (b)(1). Additionally, as stated in the last 

paragraph of H.47: “The following subcontracts are determined necessary for transfer to the successor contractor: None.” Therefore, DOE is not directing 

the selected contractor to assume any of the subcontracts. The selected contractor will be reviewing and accepting assignment, or recommending changes 

on which subcontractors to assume, to the CO for approval as required, as part of the transition process. 

RFP Section C.1.0 under Transition Plan, the third sentence, will be revised in a future amendment to read: “The transition plan shall describe the 

Contractor’s process for conducting an orderly transition and minimizing any adverse impacts on continuity of operations. The plan shall provide sufficient 

detail for all transition activities, including but not limited to: the transition schedule with defined milestones, milestone risks, and a mitigation plan for 

the identified risks; a description of all necessary transition activities (including process for assignment of subcontracts); written notification to the CO of 

the Contractor’s intent to accept ownership of existing programs and/or procedures (i.e. “blue-sheeting”) upon assumption of responsibility for the work; 

and coverage of key functional areas during the transition period.

28 M.4 EVALUATION FACTOR – 

MANAGEMENT APPROACH

Subsection (d) states "Small Business Participation. DOE will evaluate the Offeror’s approach 

to meet or exceed the small business subcontracting requirement of 20% of the total contract 

value, including subcontracting of meaningful work scope." Given the large amount of funding 

to large business for the capital projects, it seems that a 20% of the remaining dollars to small 

business is unachievable.  Would DOE consider either (i) reducing the goal to an achievable 

percentage of total contract value to small business or (ii) limit it to 20% of the subcontracting 

done in support of the M&O CLINS (00002 thru 00008)? 

Small Businesses are very important to the success of the EM mission. DOE does not anticipate reducing or limiting the requirement at this time. 

29 B# Fee Reductions Section B, to the SRS M&O Draft RFP (Solicitation 89303320REM000076), includes a Clause 

B.15, Fee Reductions.  It is a fair and balanced clause having equal justification and application 

to all DOE facility costs contracts.  Additionally, it is distinct from Clause H.24 to this RFP in 

that the SRS Section B clause is a limitation on assessable penalties while the H.24 clause to 

this RFP is a cap on disallowed costs.  Will DOE consider including the SRS clause, tailored to 

this RFP, in this contract?

DOE determined not to include the referenced clause in this RFP.

For clarification: Section H. 24 DOE-H-7015 CAP ON LIABILITY (SEP 2017) is only applicable if the successful awardee is a Non-Profit Organization.

30 H.30 DOE-H-7027 DOE Mentor-

Protégé Program

Section H.30 states that the Contractor shall mentor at least one (1) active Protege company 

at all times during the performance of this contract. Recent DOE EM End State Contracting 

Model (ESCM) RFPs had the same requirement but clarified that the agreement is in exception 

of the Contract Transition Period. Is it correct to assume that the requirement on having one 

active Protege begins at the completion of Contract Transition?

Yes, it is correct to assume performance of the contract starts after transition has been completed.

31 H.4 , H.9 Workforce Transition and 

Employee Hiring 

Preferences; Labor 

Relations

Please provide the site employee composition, such as, but not limited to: (1) total number of 

employees and total number of staff augmentation personnel, (2) total number of craft, 

exempt and non-exempt employees; and (3) total number of union personnel.

DOE does not anticipate providing this information. Proposed pricing will not encompass any incumbent employees or TRIAD employees.

32 L.11(f) Representations and 

Certifications

Please confirm that only the bidding entity (i.e., Offeror) is required to submit a complete 

Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of the Offeror; and that each 

LLC member and Teaming Subcontractor is not required to submit and sign a completed 

Section K.

That is correct. Only the Offeror is required to submit a completed Section K. Please note also, however, that in accordance with Section L. 11(m), the 

Offeror AND each entity participating in a Joint Venture, Limited Liability Company (LLC), or Teaming Agreement thereof, as defined in FAR 9.601(1), shall 

provide a fully executed Section K provision entitled, “Organizational Conflicts of Interest Disclosure” and any necessary statements required by the 

provision.

33 L.11(b)(2)(v) General, Section H, DOE-(v) 

DOE-H-2070 Key Personnel

Clause indicated at L.11(2)(iv) DOE-H-2070 Key Personnel - (Oct 2014) Revised and L.11(2)(v) 

DOE-H-2070 Key Personnel - Alternate I (Oct 2014) (applies to task orders only) Revised 

appear to be redundant. The clause at H.64 is titled DOE-H-2070 KEY PERSONNEL – 

ALTERNATE I (OCT 2014) (REVISED). Please clarify this apparent redundancy.

An upcoming Amendment to the RFP will remove the following: The reference to L.11(2)(iv) DOE-H-2070 Key Personnel - (Oct 2014) and also, “(applies to 

task orders only)” will be removed from L.11(2)(v).

34 H.27(b)(1) DOE-H-7019 Separate 

Entity and Corporate 

Guarantee

In H.27(b)(1), the solicitation states If the Contractor is a joint venture, newly-formed Limited 

Liability Company (LLC), or other similar entity where more than one company is involved in a 

business relationship created for the purpose of this procurement, the parent companies of all 

the entities forming the new entity shall each provide Guarantees for joint and severable 

liability for the performance of the Contractor.  We note that this language differs somewhat 

from other recent DOE EM solicitations, where the requirement states “…the parent(s) or all 

member organizations [emphasis added] shall assume joint and severable liability for the 

performance of the contract.”  Please confirm that when the Contractor is a joint venture or 

newly-formed LLC, the Performance Guarantee Agreement may be executed by the member 

organization(s) of the joint venture or LLC.

DOE has considered the request. However, if the JV/LLC is newly formed for this acquisition, the parent companies of all the entities forming the new 

entity shall each provide Guarantees, as stated.                                                                             

35 PWS C.1.0 

EM.CB.0080.01.0

1 Contract 

Transition

PMB Development Process 

Expectations/Requirements

PWS C.1.0 within the section entitled Mobilization, last bullet, indicates that the Contractor 

should initiate PMB development as authorized by the CO, which will occur after Contractor 

review and acceptance of required programs/procedures, which follows Contractor 

notification of readiness to assume PMB development.  Attachment J-6, Deliverable *3 

indicates the notification to assume readiness for PMB development is required within 30 

days of Notice to Proceed.  Please clarify what comprises 'review and acceptance of the 

required programs/procedures', what the specific programs/procedures are this references, 

and whether the CO requires 'at least 30 days' to approve the notification in accordance with 

Attachment J-6.

The purpose of this requirement is to allow the Contractor additional time beyond 90 days following their Declaration of Readiness to develop a quality 

PMB.  It is the Contractor's responsibility to determine their own needs of program/procedure acceptance in order to produce a quality PMB.  Attachment 

J-6 Contract Deliverables List, of the RFP identifies all required Transition documents (including programs and procedures), and DOE's Action for each. The 

Contractor should assume that the CO requires at least 30 days to approve the notification.



36 Section 

L.17(1)(iii)  and 

Attachment L-6, 

Tab Attachment 

L-6a

Subcontractor Cost 

Elements

Section L.17(1)(iii) indicates that proposed non-labor costs (including but not limited to 

materials equipment, subcontracts, supplies, travel, relocation and other direct costs) are to 

be provided for in Attachment L-6a.  The element of cost list in Attachment L-6a does not 

provide for breakdown of further sub elements below the Subcontractor cost element (i.e. 

subcontractor labor, material, travel, etc.…).  Does DOE expect to be provided that level of 

detail in the final submittal for evaluation purposes and if so, can the spreadsheet be modified 

as needed to provide that detail or should Offeror's use the Item Description lines and expand 

as needed?  If the BOE reflects this level of detail, is it sufficient to reflect total values in 

Attachment L-6a?

Yes - For Teaming Subcontractors - The RFP will be amended to clarify that Teaming Subcontractor detail by cost element shall be provided in the BOE 

with the total value in the Attachment L-6. 

No - For Other Subcontractors.

37 Section J, 

Attachment J-6

Nuclear Maintenance 

Management Program

Deliverable *136 for the Nuclear Maintenance Management Program has a required due date 

"At least 60 days prior to startup of new hazard category 1, 2, and 3 nuclear facilities and at 

least every three years for all hazard category 1, 2, and 3 nuclear facilities."  Since the 

Contractor will be assuming operations following Transition, please clarify that this in 

intended to be a Transition deliverable and if so, when it would be due to DOE during 

Transition.  Please clarify if this is intended to be specific to a facility, subset of facilities, or all 

facilities for which the contractor will assume operations.

This is both a Transition deliverable that is due within 60 days of Notice to Proceed and a Periodic deliverable due as stated. The requirement is applicable 

to all facilities, both current and future, for which the incoming Contractor will assume responsibilities.

38 M.2(b)(1) Key Personnel Resume 

Experience

Section M.2(b)(1) states that the key personnel individually will be evaluated on their DOE, 

commercial, and/or other Government experience in performing work similar to the work to 

be

performed . . ."

We understand the quoted language to mean that "work similar to the work to be performed" 

is not limited to work under DOE contracts, and that similar work in the commercial sector or 

for other Government agencies will be weighted the same as work under DOE contracts. 

Please confirm this understanding or clarify how DOE will evaluate similar work outside of 

DOE.

Evaluation will involve review of DOE, commercial, and/or other Government experience in performing work similar to the work to be performed without 

preference for experience coming from any specific entity type.

39 M.3(a) Offeror Past Performance 

Evaluation

Section M.3(a) states that similar scope, size, and complexity are defined as follows based on 

the portion of work that each entity is proposed to perform: scope – type of work (e.g., work 

as identified in the PWS, including similar work of a non-nuclear nature and/or similar non-

DOE work); . . .

We understand the quoted language to mean that "similar work of a non-nuclear nature 

and/or similar non-DOE work" will be weighted the same as work for DOE. Please confirm this 

understanding or clarify how DOE will evaluate similar work of a non-nuclear nature and/or 

similar non-DOE work.

The parenthetical referenced is included to indicate that non-nuclear and non-DOE work will be considered for scope similarity, not that it would be equal 

to nuclear and DOE work regarding scope – type. The tasks the contractor performed on the referenced contracts will be evaluated for similarity to the 

tasks the entity is proposed to perform as related to Section C of the RFP (i.e., the WIPP M&O Performance Work Statement (PWS) requirements).

40 M.3(h) Sources of Past 

Performance Information

Section M.3(h) states that DOE contracts are not necessarily evaluated with more relevance 

than non-DOE contracts, based on the sole fact that it was work for DOE. The evaluation of 

relevancy is based on the factors listed above. Scope, size, and complexity determinations will 

be made solely based on the relationship of past work to current requirements, without any 

preference or benefit given based on the entity for which the work was performed.

The word "necessarily" implies that DOE contracts might be evaluated with more relevance 

than non-DOE contracts, based on the sole fact that it was work for DOE. Please clarify when 

DOE contracts will be considered more relevant than non-DOE experience, based on the sole 

fact that it was work for DOE, and when it will not be.

The evaluation of relevancy is based on the factors listed above section M.3(h). Scope, size, and complexity determinations will be made solely based on 

the relationship of past work to current requirements, without any preference or benefit given based on the entity for which the work was performed. The 

word “necessarily” is included in M.3(h) because DOE and nuclear tasks may be evaluated as more similar to the tasks in the PWS than those in the 

offerors’ other referenced contracts. 

41 M.3(a) and 

M.3(d)

Evaluation Factor - Past 

Performance

Please confirm that a reference contract submitted for a portion of the scope of work to be 

performed by a team member, but not all areas of scope to be performed by that team 

member, still may be evaluated as Relevant.  For instance, if a team member proposed to 

perform Scope A, B, and C submits three reference contracts  and reference contract 1 

contains size, scope and complexity similar to scope A, reference contract 2 contains size, 

scope and complexity similar to Scope B and reference contract 3 contains size, scope and 

complexity similar to Scope C, would each reference contracts be deemed relevant under 

M.3(a) and contribute to the overall past performance rating of the Offeror under M.3(d)?  

 The referenced contracts will be evaluated for scope, size, and complexity to the work each entity is proposed to perform. DOE cannot respond to 

hypothetical questions, and each Offeror will evaluated in accordance with Section M of the RFP.  

42 L.15(b), M.3(a) 

and M.3(d)

Offeror Past Performance Please confirm that for a team member that is proposed to perform a specific area of scope, 

but not all areas of scope, that the relevancy for that team member’s reference past 

performance contracts would be determined based on the specific area of scope they are 

proposed to perform, rather than against the entire PWS.  For instance, if team member A is 

responsible for Scope A, but not Scope B and C, and the team member’s referenced contracts 

involve work similar in size, scope and complexity to Scope A, would those reference contracts 

be deemed relevant under M.3(a) and contribute to the overall past performance rating of the 

Offeror under M.3(d)?

 The teaming subcontractor referenced contracts will be evaluated for scope, size, and complexity to the work the teaming subcontractor is proposed to 

perform. DOE cannot respond to hypothetical questions, and each Offeror will evaluated in accordance with Section M of the RFP.  



43 M.3(b) and 

M.3(d)

Evaluation Factor - Past 

Performance

Please confirm that a reference contract submitted for a portion of the scope of work to be 

performed by a teaming subcontractor, but not all areas of scope to be performed by that 

teaming subcontractor, still may be evaluated as Relevant.  For instance, if a teaming 

subcontractor is proposed to perform Scope A and B submits two reference contracts and 

reference contract 1 contains size, scope and complexity similar to scope A and reference 

contract 2 contains size, scope and complexity similar to Scope B, would each reference 

contracts be deemed relevant under M.3(b) and contribute to the overall past performance 

rating of the Offeror under M.3(d)?   

 The teaming subcontractor referenced contracts will be evaluated for scope, size, and complexity to the work the teaming subcontractor is proposed to 

perform. DOE cannot respond to hypothetical questions, and each Offeror will evaluated in accordance with Section M of the RFP.  

44 M.3(a) and 

M.3(b)

Evaluation Factor - Past 

Performance

If a reference contract includes mines or industrial ventilation systems scope, but not other 

areas of scope to be performed by that team member or subcontractor, could that reference 

contract be deemed Very Relevant under M.3(a) or M.3(b)?   

The RFP will be revised in a future amendment as follows:

Section L.15(b) will be revised as follows:

      “(b)	Offeror past performance. The Offeror, to include all members of a teaming arrangement, as defined by FAR 9.601(1), shall provide information on 

contracts that are most similar in terms of scope, size, and complexity to the portion of the PWS that each entity is proposed to perform. Similar scope, 

size, and complexity are defined as follows based on the portion of work that each entity is proposed to perform: scope – type of work (e.g., work as 

identified in the PWS, including similar work of a non-nuclear nature and/or similar non-DOE work); size – dollar value (approximate average annual value 

in relation to proposed work; annual contract value of approximately $200M for evaluation purposes); and complexity – performance challenges (e.g., 

prior innovations, work performance improvements, subcontractor management, execution of Capital Asset Project portfolio, management of large 

complex contracts in a highly regulated environment, comparable experience with mines and/or industrial ventilation systems, cost efficiencies, 

management of complex CHRM requirements, and successful collaboration with the Government, Client, multiple stakeholders, and Regulators).”

Section M.3 will be revised as follows:

    “(a)	Offeror. The Offeror, to include all members of a teaming arrangement, as defined in FAR 9.601(1), will be evaluated on the Government’s 

assessment of relevant and recent past performance information obtained for the Offeror performing work similar in scope, size, and complexity to the 

portion of the PWS that each entity is proposed to perform. The information will be evaluated in order to assess the Offeror’s potential success in 

performing the work required by the contract. Similar scope, size, and complexity are defined as follows based on the portion of work that each entity is 

proposed to perform: scope – type of work (e.g., work as identified in the PWS, including similar work of a non-nuclear nature and/or similar non-DOE 

work); size – dollar value (approximate average annual value in relation to the proposed work; annual contract value of approximately $200M for 

evaluation purposes); and complexity – performance challenges (e.g., prior innovations, work performance improvements, subcontractor management, 

execution of  Capital Asset Project portfolio, management of large complex contracts in a highly regulated environment, comparable experience with 

mines and/or industrial ventilation systems, cost efficiencies, management of complex CHRM requirements, and successful collaboration with the 

Government, Client, multiple stakeholders, and Regulators). The higher the degree of relevance of the work, the greater the consideration that may be 

given.”  

45 M.3(d) Evaluation Factor - Past 

Performance

Please confirm that an offeror that provides reference contracts that show past performance 

in all areas of scope in the PWS may be evaluated as Outstanding under the Past Performance 

evaluation factor. For instance, if one referenced contract shows Very Relevant past 

performance in half the PWS scope and another referenced contract shows Very Relevant past 

performance in the other half of the PWS scope, could that offeror receive the highest rating 

under the past performance evaluation factor?

DOE cannot respond to hypothetical questions, and each Offeror will evaluated in accordance with Section M of the RFP.  Pursuant to Section M.3(d), “The 

resulting rating will consider whether the Offeror’s team as a whole (including Teaming Subcontractors) have demonstrated relevancy to all PWS 

requirements”. M.3(a) also states: “The higher the degree of relevance of the work, the greater the consideration that may be given.” Additionally, the SEB 

will evaluate whether the LLC/JV members have managed contracts/projects of a similar size, which is considered to be an "annual contract value of 

approximately $200M for evaluation purposes.” 

46 C.5.1.1 SAFETY SIGNIFICANT 

CONFINEMENT

VENTILATION SYSTEM 

(SSCVS) PROJECT

Section states that the SSCVS project is being rebase lined, but goes on to require that the 

Contractor shall "Complete the SSCVS project on time, and within budget." Due to the 

ambiguity of the term "on time and within budget" for a baseline that is in flux, suggest that 

DOE revise C.5.1.1 to read "Complete the SSCVS project on time, and within budget relative to 

the PMB established and maintained per Section C.7.1."

The RFP PWS and estimated completion dates are contract requirements at this time.   Any changes to the CAPs, including PMB, will be managed in 

accordance with the contract and DOE Order 413.3b.  

47 C.5.1.2 UTILITY SHAFT (US) 

PROJECT

Section states that the US project is being rebase lined, but goes on to require that the 

Contractor shall "Complete the US project on time, and within budget." Due to the ambiguity 

of the term "on time and within budget" for a baseline that is in flux, suggest that DOE revise 

C.5.1.1 to read "Complete the SSCVS project on time, and within budget relative to the PMB 

established and maintained per Section C.7.1."

The RFP PWS and estimated completion dates are contract requirements at this time.   Any changes to the CAPs, including PMB, will be managed in 

accordance with the contract and DOE Order 413.3b.  

48 H.4(b)(2) WORKFORCE TRANSITION 

AND EMPLOYEE HIRING 

PREFERENCES, INCLUDING 

THROUGH PERIOD OF 

PERFORMANCE

The section states that (2) The Contractor shall give a preference in hiring to individuals set 

forth below ...

(B) Former employees of other DOE contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) at a DOE defense nuclear 

facility eligible for the hiring preference.

Question: What organization within DOE maintains a current list of all former employees of 

all DOE contractors or subcontractors at DOE defense nuclear facilities that are eligible for the 

hiring preference?

There is no organization that keeps these records.  Verification should be done with the prior employer (contractor).  A list of DOE defense nuclear 

facilities will be posted to the WIPP M&O acquisition Website under the documents library.

49 L.10(f)(4) Page Margins This section states that "Paragraphs of text and section heading are not allowed on 11 x 17’s." 

While this requirement is standard for proposals wherein an 11 x 17 page counts as only a 

single page, each 11 x 17 page counts as two pages in this proposal. Thus, offerors do not gain 

a space advantage if they include a paragraph of text to explain a portion of a graphic. For 

that reason, please remove the statement,  "Paragraphs of text and section heading are not 

allowed on 11 x 17’s."

An upcoming amendment to the RFP will revise the following: DOE will allow 11 x 17 fold outs to be counted as one page. However, note that fold outs 

may only "...be used for large tables, charts, graphs, diagrams, design drawings, or other schematics". DOE will issue an amendment to the RFP to 

incorporate this change.



50 L.15(g) PAST PERFORMANCE 

Terminated contracts, cure 

notices, and conditional 

payment of 

fee/profit/other incentive 

actions. 

The section requires a list of contracts of the Offeror that: (1) were terminated for default; (2) 

included a cure notice(s), in accordance with FAR 49 Termination of Contracts; and/or (3) 

included a conditional payment of fee/profit/other incentive action(s) as described in the 

DEAR within the past four (4) years from the original solicitation issuance date. This listing of 

terminated contracts, cure notices, or conditional payment of fee/profit/other incentive 

actions shall include the reasoning for the aforementioned actions. 

The corresponding Section M clause, M.3(g) does not state that DOE will evaluate only those 

contract actions that occurred within the last 4 years, nor does it state that DOE will consider 

the reasoning for the aforementioned actions which DOE required offerors to provide in 

section L. Please modify section M to evaluate those data that DOE required offerors to 

provide in Section L.

As is stated in Section M.3(g), Terminated contracts, cure notices, and conditional payment of fee/profit/other incentive actions: “The Government may 

consider contracts of the Offeror, to include all members of a teaming arrangement, as defined in FAR 9.601(1), and Teaming Subcontractors, that: (1) 

were terminated for default; (2) included a cure notice(s) in accordance with FAR 49 Termination of Contracts; and (3) included a conditional payment of 

fee/profit/other incentive action(s) as described in the DEAR over the preceding four (4) years from the original solicitation issuance date, including the 

reasoning for the aforementioned actions.” The last portion of the preceding sentence, “over the preceding four (4) years from the original solicitation 

issuance date, including the reasoning for the aforementioned actions,” indicates that DOE intends to evaluate the data requested. 

51 L.14(a) Key Personnel Section (a) Item (1) requires that the Offeror shall provide the rationale for the selection of 

the proposed non-required key personnel positions regarding why they are essential to the 

successful performance of the entire PWS and why the proposed non-required key personnel 

positions are the optimal team for execution of the PWS. The corresponding section M does 

not consider why the proposed key positions represent the optimal team for execution of the 

PWS. Please modify section M to evaluate those data that DOE required offerors to provide in 

Section L.

Section L.14(a)(1) will be revised in an up coming amendment to focus on evaluation of individual key personnel.

Additionally, the Note in Section M.2(a) will be amended to focus on evaluation of individual key personnel. The language in Section M.4(c) identifies DOE 

evaluation of teaming/organizational structure and roles and responsibilities.

52 Table J-6, 

Contract 

Deliverables List

Deliverable #27 (Records 

Management Plan) due 

date discrepancy

Deliverable #27 states the Records Management Plan is due within 120 days of the Notice to 

Proceed. However, H.88 state the Records Management Program Plan is due within 60 days of 

the Notice to Proceed. Please clarify 

RFP Section J-6, Contract Deliverables List, will be amended to add two (2) asterisks (**) to deliverable #27, and the due date will be amended to "Due 

within 60 days after Notice to Proceed."

53 H.88 Deliverable required 

without a due date 

(Records Disposition Plan)

A Records Disposition Plan is required in H.88. However, no due date is listed and the 

Deliverable does not appear on Table J-6. Please clarify due date for the Records Disposition 

Plan.

RFP Section J, Attachment J-6, Contract Deliverables List, will be amended to add a "Records Disposition Plan" pursuant to Section H.88, due within 180 

days after Notice to Proceed."

54 H.7 Draft Benefits Transition 

Plan due date discrepancy 

(not listed in Table J-6)

Section H.7(b)(1) states the due date is within 10 days after the effective date of the contract 

transition Notice to Proceed. Section H.7(b)(2)(C )(i) states the due date is within 20 days after 

the effective date of the contract transition Notice to Proceed. Please clarify.

The draft Benefits Transition Plan is due within 20 days after the effective date of the contract transition Notice to Proceed.  Section H.7(b)(1) opening 

paragraph will be amended to reflected 20 days instead of 10 days.

55 L.13(d) Names of Small Business 

Subcontractors (Protégés)

Section L.13(d) states: "The Offeror shall not include the name(s) of any other specific 

subcontractor(s) (i.e., any non-Teaming Subcontractor(s)) within Volumes II and III." Based on 

DOE's encouragement for the mentoring of protégés and the consideration given to protégé 

relationships in RFP clauses B.6, H.30, H.50, and L.3, would DOE consider changing the 

wording of the requirement quoted above to allow Offeror's to include the names of its 

existing and proposed DOE Mentor-Protégé Program protégés in Volume II in the context of 

its organizational/management approach and approach to small business participation? 

Per the RFP’s Section L.13, Offerors “shall not include the name(s) of any other specific subcontractor(s) (i.e., any non-Teaming Subcontractor(s)) within 

Volumes II and III.” Only if an Offeror’s Protégé would be a teaming subcontractor would it then be appropriate to include the name of that teaming 

subcontractor as required by the RFP. 

56 L.16(b) Pension and Benefits 

Transition

Due to the differences between the title of this section and the contents of this section, we 

are uncertain what DOE is requesting. For example, the section title uses the word 

"transition," which could refer to the transition period and would indicate one focus, but the 

section instructions do not mention transition and include the words "manage and 

implement," which would occur during the execution of the contract and not during 

transition.

Please clarify: 

1) Should the proposed approach focus on the "transition" of these plans from the incumbent 

to the successful Offeror or should the approach also address management of the plans 

following the transition period? 

2) The proposal instructions require Offerors to describe their approach only to defined 

benefit pension and post-retirement welfare plans and not all active employee benefit plans. 

Are we to address only those benefits that are post-retirement welfare plans?

3) Regarding the defined benefit pension plan, should the approach focus on legacy pension 

aspects for retired employees only or should the approach also address pension for current 

and future employees.

Please clarify the wording of the instruction. 

(1) Section L.16 (a), “Contract Transition Approach,” requires that the Offeror fully describe in its proposal its approach to achieve the Contract Transition 

requirements listed in Section C and a description of its implementation of the Contractor Human Resources Management (CHRM) clauses found in 

Section H. 

(2) Section L.16 (b), currently entitled “Pension and Benefits Transition” will by amendment to this RFP have its title revised to “Defined Benefit Pension 

and Post-Retirement Benefits.” This paragraph requires the Offeror’s proposal to include a full description of “its management approach to effectively 

sponsor, manage, and implement defined benefit pension and post-retirement welfare plans…” throughout the period of performance for current/future 

employees and for retirees. 

(3) See response to (2), above. 

57 L.11 (f) Representations and 

certifications.

L.11(f) requests Representations and Certifications from the Offeror. Is Section K only required 

for the bidding LLC entity, or each member of the LLC, or each member of the LLC and all 

Teaming Subcontractors? 

That is correct. Only the Offeror is required to submit a completed Section K. Please note also, however, that in accordance with Section L. 11(m), the 

Offeror AND each entity participating in a Joint Venture, Limited Liability Company (LLC), or Teaming Agreement thereof, as defined in FAR 9.601(1), shall 

provide a fully executed Section K provision entitled, “Organizational Conflicts of Interest Disclosure” and any necessary statements required by the 

provision.

58 L.11 (j) Responsible Corporate 

Official and Corporate 

Board of Directors.

Section L.11(b)(2) Section H DOE-H-2017 Responsible Corporate Official and Corporate Board 

of Directors (Oct 2014) (Revised) section L.11(j) Responsible Corporate Official and Corporate 

Board of Directors request the same information.  Do we need to provide the same 

information twice or can we just provide it in the first section and reference in the second 

section?

The information only needs to be provided once by completing the required Section H Fill-in information.

59 L.10 (f) Proposal specifications, 

item 6

The section  requires readable and searchable using Microsoft® Word®, Excel®, or Adobe® 

portable document format (PDF) file (must be in a searchable format, not scanned), with 

exception for items in Volume I and Volume III.  Volume II, requires signed Letter of 

Commitment and signed Past Performance Consent Letters.  Can those page be added to the 

list of exemptions?

DOE will amend the RFP to include Vol. II signed letters of commitment and signed Past Performance Consent Letters.



60 L.11 (b) General and (f) 

Representations and 

certifications

Section L.11 states that documents requiring signature in Volume I can be a visibly identifiable 

scanned and/or time-stamped digital signature. Section K.18 indicated that a digital signature 

is required.  Will the government accept a visibly indefinable scanned page in stead of a 

digitally signed document for Section K?

DOE will amend the RFP to clarify that visibly identifiable scanned signatures are acceptable for K.18.

61 L.15(j) L.15(j) Past Performance 

Consent Statement

Would the Government consider changing the wording of the Consent Statement as follows: 

"…for the Waste Isolation Pilot Plant Program Management and Operations Acquisition…"

Yes. The Consent Statement will be amended as described.

62 L.11(k) Small Business Plan The RFP requests an Individual Small Business Subcontracting Plan, should this be a Master 

Small Business Subcontracting Plan based on the fact that generally 'newly formed entities',  

formed solely for the purpose of submitting a proposal for this procurement will be bidding?

No, the RFP is correct. DOE does not believe a master subcontracting plan is appropriate  for this RFP.

63 PWS C.1.0 Transition To enable accurate transition cost estimating, will DOE please provide the following WIPP 

workforce information?

- total number of employees

- number of union represented workers - USW, S&S, UGSOA

- number of exempt employees

- number of non-exempt employees

- number of TDY employees, if any, at generator sites or labs

DOE will not provide this information. Proposed pricing will not encompass any incumbent employees or TRIAD employees.

64 PWS C.1.0 Transition Transition deliverable #125 references clause H-7017, which does not appear to be in the 

contract. Would DOE correct this discrepancy.

 Section J-6  will be amended to delete deliverable #125.

65 L.11(h) FOCI Office Location This section states "When filling out the New User Registration information in the DOE FOCI 

ESS, select “Savannah River Site – EMCBC” as the FOCI Office that will review your submission 

for this solicitation when it is completed." Is this the correct office or should it be sent to the 

Carlsbad Field office?

Yes, “Savannah River Site – EMCBC" is the correct office.

66 L.14(a) Key personnel The list of key personnel includes Environmental, Safety and Health Manager. Traditionally 

DOE has referred to this as "Environment, Safety and Health Manager," which corresponds to 

DOE's acronym ES&H. We recommend that DOE change this to Environment, Safety and 

Health Manager.

This position title will be amended, to "Environment, Safety and Health Manager".

67 Section 

L.11(b)(2)(v)

Key personnel This section includes "(applies to task orders only)." We believe that this should be deleted. 

Would DOE please clarify.
"(applies to task orders only)” will be removed from L.11(2)(v), via an upcoming amendment to the RFP.

68 L.15(a) Past Performance Limiting past performance evaluations to projects executed within the last four years 

effectively ensures the Department will qualify only those Tier 1 contractors currently 

operating on DOE facilities for future Tier 1 opportunities. Past Performance evaluations 

should be expanded to those completed within the last 5 years. Additionally, limiting the Past 

Performance to 3 specific (single) contracts for each member of the offeror is self limiting by 

DOE. The reality is, only DOE contracts at this size and funding levels so only existing Prime 

contracts can meet that absolute criteria for size, scope and complexity. The commercial 

world and in fact, most government agencies performing remediation do not contract 

similarly. A suggested approach would be to expand the aperture by allowing a contractor to 

use a “client” or “site based” approach instead of a single contract. In the commercial world, 

with much of it being firm fixed price work, many clients award multiple contracts for 

differing scopes to the same contractor. So, a 5 year look back period for a single client or 

perhaps site, in which an offeror might have numerous scope based contracts but for the 

same client for the PPPQ reference would be appropriate and count as one reference.

DOE has considered the request. However, the majority of recent large Environmental Management (EM) acquisitions have used the same process (i.e., up 

to three (3) past performance references for each prime team member and up to two (2) for each teaming subcontract, for the last 4 years). Therefore, 

the time period will not be expanded to five (5) years on this acquisition.

69 L.17 Proposal 

Preparation 

Instruction, 

Volume III - Cost 

and Fee Proposal

Schedule A schedule for Transition has not been defined as a requirement.  If P6 is used to develop a 

Transition Schedule will DOE require a license for P6 in order to review the schedule?

RFP Section L.17, “Proposal Preparation Instructions, Volume III - Cost and Fee Proposal,” states at (a)(1),“The transition period is 90 days. The Offeror 

shall assume a transition start date of April 16, 2022 with operational activities beginning July 15, 2022 for proposal preparation purposes.” Note also 

Section C.1.0, “…Contractor Transition,” under the heading “Transition Plan”: “The plan shall provide sufficient detail for all transition activities, including 

but not limited to: the transition schedule with defined milestones..."  DOE has or can acquire on its own as needed a P6 license to review the schedule.

70 L.17(a)(1)ii Home office expenses The note on page L-32 that home office expenses are unallowable seems to conflict with other 

instructions in RFP.  For example, one element of cost for transition is home office G&A 

(attachment L-6-a), which by nature includes indirect "home office expenses...relating to 

activities of the Contractor." Would DOE please clarify this conflict in the requirements. Will 

home office G&A be an allowable cost on transition?

Attachment L-6a provides flexibility to the Offeror in preparing the proposed Transition costs. If the Offeror proposes transition activities being completed 

by Offeror entities,  the cost instructions and Attachment L-6a allow home office allocations during transition if applicable. 

71 L-3 PPIF The Past Performance information form contains instructions as well as the requirements for 

the form itself. For example, there is a note at the end that states, "Note: The Offeror may 

amend the format for Attachment L-3, Past Performance Reference Information Form, as long 

as the exact information, font and size (per DOE-L-2001), and page limitations are followed. 

Also, the information contained in the Offeror’s submitted L-3 forms shall be consistent with 

the information contained in other sections of the Volume II proposal." Is it permissible to 

remove these instructions from the form or does DOE require that all of the instructions be 

included on the final document?

It is permissible to remove the following two (2) sets of instructions from completed and submitted copies; however, it is noted that, whether kept or 

removed, the instructions remain in effect. 1.) On the first page of “Attachment L-3: Past Performance Reference Information Form,” under the document 

title, the ENTIRE paragraph that begins with “(Completed Form limited to seven pages per reference contract….)”; and 2.) At the end, the ENTIRE box/ 

table row and text within that begins with “Note: The Offeror may amend the format….” However, it is noted that, whether kept or removed, the 

instructions remain in effect.



72 L-3 PPIF Note: The Offeror may amend the format for Attachment L-3, Past Performance Reference 

Information Form, as long as the exact information, font and size (per DOE-L-2001), and page 

limitations are followed. Section L.10(f)(3) states: Paragraph text shall be 12 point or larger, 

single spaced, using Times New Roman font, including paragraph text in the Section L 

attachments (including Attachment L-3, Past Performance Reference Information Form). 

Headers and footers, spreadsheets, charts, tables, diagrams or design drawings, and graphs 

must be 9 point or larger using Times New Roman or Arial font. Is it allowable for the L-3 PPIF 

form table to be adjusted to the "table" font to allow more spacing for "paragraph text" as 

identified in this requirement to help meet the 7-page limitation?

It is not allowable. Offerors should follow the instructions provided in Section L.10 (f)(3), which states "(3) Print type. Paragraph text shall be 12 point or 

larger, single spaced, using Times New Roman font, including paragraph text in the Section L attachments (including Attachment L-3, Past Performance 

Reference Information Form). "

73 M.3(a) Relevancy Section M states, "Experience with mines and

industrial ventilation systems is considered very relevant." We assume that because this 

statement is not tied to size or complexity that any project involving mines and industrial 

ventilation systems will be evaluated as very relevant. Is this assumption correct.

Section L.15(b) will be revised as follows:

      “(b)	Offeror past performance. The Offeror, to include all members of a teaming arrangement, as defined by FAR 9.601(1), shall provide information on 

contracts that are most similar in terms of scope, size, and complexity to the portion of the PWS that each entity is proposed to perform. Similar scope, 

size, and complexity are defined as follows based on the portion of work that each entity is proposed to perform: scope – type of work (e.g., work as 

identified in the PWS, including similar work of a non-nuclear nature and/or similar non-DOE work); size – dollar value (approximate average annual value 

in relation to proposed work; annual contract value of approximately $200M for evaluation purposes); and complexity – performance challenges (e.g., 

prior innovations, work performance improvements, subcontractor management, execution of Capital Asset Project portfolio, management of large 

complex contracts in a highly regulated environment, comparable experience with mines and/or industrial ventilation systems, cost efficiencies, 

management of complex CHRM requirements, and successful collaboration with the Government, Client, multiple stakeholders, and Regulators).”

Section M.3 will be revised as follows:

    “(a)	Offeror. The Offeror, to include all members of a teaming arrangement, as defined in FAR 9.601(1), will be evaluated on the Government’s 

assessment of relevant and recent past performance information obtained for the Offeror performing work similar in scope, size, and complexity to the 

portion of the PWS that each entity is proposed to perform. The information will be evaluated in order to assess the Offeror’s potential success in 

performing the work required by the contract. Similar scope, size, and complexity are defined as follows based on the portion of work that each entity is 

proposed to perform: scope – type of work (e.g., work as identified in the PWS, including similar work of a non-nuclear nature and/or similar non-DOE 

work); size – dollar value (approximate average annual value in relation to the proposed work; annual contract value of approximately $200M for 

evaluation purposes); and complexity – performance challenges (e.g., prior innovations, work performance improvements, subcontractor management, 

execution of  Capital Asset Project portfolio, management of large complex contracts in a highly regulated environment,  comparable experience with 

mines and/or industrial ventilation systems, cost efficiencies, management of complex CHRM requirements, and successful collaboration with the 

Government, Client, multiple stakeholders, and Regulators). The higher the degree of relevance of the work, the greater the consideration that may be 

given.”  

74 PWS C.1.0 Transition To enable accurate transition cost estimating, will DOE please provide the number of 

documents that must be reviewed during transition per the contractual blue sheeting 

requirement? 

Attachment J-6 Contract Deliverables List, of the RFP identifies the Transition documents (as well as the Transition and Periodic documents) that are 

required to be submitted, along with the associated DOE's Action.

75 PWS C.1.0 Transition Will DOE provide office space on the WIPP site to accommodate the incoming contractor's 

transition staff? Will DOE provide office equipment?

The Government will not provide office space or office equipment to accommodate the incoming contractor's transition staff.

76 Section I CAS Compliance Is FAR 52.203-1 applicable to this contract and solicitation? It is not listed in the model 

contract; however FAR 30.201-3 would seem to indicate that it is applicable to this contract? 

Would DOE please clarify.

DOE believes this question refers to FAR provision 52.230-1, not FAR 52.203-1. Based on the above, FAR provision 52.230-1 is included in the Section K.6- 

FAR 52.230-1 COST ACCOUNTING STANDARDS NOTICES AND CERTIFICATION (JUN 2020).

77 J-4 Special Financial Institution 

Account Agreement for Use 

With The Payments Cleared 

Financing Arrangement

Please confirm the Special Financial Agreement is intended to be signed and available for use 

at the completion of Transition. Further, we recommend that DOE consider this as a key 

transition document in the deliverables list (attachment J-6). 

Yes, Special Financial Agreement is intended to be signed and available for use at the completion of Transition. The RFP will be amended to add it to the 

deliverables list.

78 L.13(d) Potential Subcontractors The RFP states that the offeror shall not include the name(s) of any other specific 

subcontractor(s). As we are committed to increased placement of meaningful work with small 

businesses (RFP M.4.d), is it permissible to list potential qualified small businesses that we 

would consider to demonstrate our ability to deliver on our commitment? In no way does this 

show preselection.

Per section L..13 of the RFP: Offerors shall not include the name(s) of any other specific subcontractor(s) (i.e., any non-Teaming Subcontractor(s)) within 

Volumes II and III. 

79 L.15(a) Past Performance Limiting past performance evaluations to projects executed within the last four years 

effectively ensures the Department will qualify only those tier 1 contractors currently 

operating on DOE facilities for future tier 1 opportunities. We recommend that DOE expand 

the period for the completion of past performance projects to within the last 5 years. 

DOE has considered the request. However, the majority of recent large Environmental Management (EM) acquisitions have used the same process (i.e., up 

to three (3) past performance references for each prime team member and up to two (2) for each teaming subcontract, for the last 4 years). Therefore, 

the time period will not be expanded to five (5) years on this acquisition.

80 L.17(c) CAS Would DOE please clarify the meaning on Offeror's organization. The cost  proposal will be 

based on the costs from parents and subcontractors. Is this asking for the status of the 

disclosure statement of each entity providing costing information? Or is it intended for the  

Offeror itself, which is a new entity?

Refer to L.10(a) Definition of Offeror. If the entity does not have its own Disclosure Statement because it may have been formed recently by affiliated 

entities for the purpose of submitting a proposal for this procurement, then the status of the Disclosure Statement of each entity forming the Offeror 

organization should provide Disclosure Statement status.

81 Section L.14 (d) Oral interviews Would the DOE please consider the added value of in-person oral interviews?  The RFP 

contemplates both virtual and in-person interviews.  Assuming the country continues to make 

positive progress against the pandemic, in-person interviews offer a more complete 

demonstration of the interviewee's ability to interact with their customer and audience.

The Department of Energy (DOE) is committed to addressing essential work requirements consistent with best public health practices. The Department’s 

paramount concern is the health and safety of all Federal employees, on-site contractors, and individuals interacting with the Federal workforce. In line 

with this policy and given the complexities of demonstrating and documenting compliance with U.S. Centers for Disease Control (CDC), and New Mexico 

mask mandates, the DOE will maintain site restrictions. DOE does not anticipate conducting in-person oral interviews at this time. 



82 B.3 Total Available 

Performance Fee

Respectfully request the Government reconsider the  Government allowed 5% performance 

fee cap as identified for the Base and Option Period.  Given the magnitude and complexity of 

this effort, the fee dictated by the Government does not recognize the significant risk 

undertaken by the Contractor, especially as there is no guaranteed base fee.  It is in the 

Government interest to offer contractors opportunities for financial rewards as a motivator of 

efficient and effective contract performance and maintain a viable industrial base.  The fee % 

dictated by the Government on this effort coupled with the award of fee based on the 

Government's assessment of Contractor performance we believe falls short of allowing the 

Contractor to reap adequate financial reward for performance.  We would request the 

Government reconsider the performance fee cap on the Base and Option periods to be 10%, 

consistent with recently awarded DOE contracts (i.e. Savannah River M&O, OakRidge M&O 

and Idaho M&O).

After further consideration DOE has decided to increase the performance fee Cap to 7% across all CLINs. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

83 Cover Letter (00425-21) Blecher to 

Prospective Offerors - WIPP 

MandO Final RFP

Now that COVID-19 restrictions are lifting, and vaccines are prevalent, is WIPP considering an 

in-person site tour? It would be very helpful to contractor to see this site in person. 

DOE will not conduct an in-person site tour at this time. The Department’s paramount concern is the health and safety of all Federal employees, on-site 

contractors, and individuals interacting with the Federal workforce. In line with this policy and given the complexities of demonstrating and documenting 

compliance with U.S. Centers for Disease Control (CDC), and New Mexico mask mandates, the DOE will maintain site restrictions and not allow public 

tours. The DOE encourages potential bidders to visit the WIPP website at: https://wipp.energy.gov/index.asp for videos and other available information. A 

virtual site tour is also available on the WIPP M&O acquisition website at: https://www.emcbc.doe.gov/SEB/wippcontract/. More information on DOE 

COVID-19 safety strategy can be found at: https://www.energy.gov/covid/doe-safety-strategy. 

84 B.3(b) TRANSITION COST, 

ANTICIPATED FUNDING, 

AND TOTAL AVAILABLE 

PERFORMANCE FEE

Why is the maximum fee % for two of the 4 capital projects listed at 5% versus 7%.  We 

request the capital projects have a consistent fee % of 7%.

There are three Capital Assets projects currently included in Section B of the RFP. After further consideration DOE has decided to increase the performance 

fee Cap to 7% across all CLINs. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming amendment to the RFP.

85 L RFP We request an extension for the due date by an additional 14 days. A Draft RFP was not 

provided, and requirements in the RFP have changed from the previous WIPP M&O RFP. 

Additional time will help to provide DOE with the best company and key personnel teams in 

response to the final RFP requirements.

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

86 Section B Contractor Fee In accordance with FAR and DEAR provisions pertaining to fee, it is in the Government's best 

interest to offer contractor's opportunities for financial rewards sufficient to:

• Stimulate efficient contract performance;

• Attract the best capabilities of qualified large and small business concerns to Government 

contracts; and

• Maintain a viable industrial base to meet public needs.

 

Additionally, greater profit opportunity should be provided under contracts requiring a high 

degree of professional and managerial skill and to prospective contractors whose skills, 

facilities, and technical assets can be expected to lead to efficient and economical contract 

performance.  

 

As such, and to be more consistent with recent ESCM RFPs where max fee was set at 8% for 

CPAF and 10% for CPAF contract work, please consider increasing the fee cap percentages 

from 5% to 7% for CPAF work, and 7% to 10% for CAP work.  The increase would help 

incentive performance, obtain strategic resources, increase operational efficiency and achieve 

on time delivery of the capital asset projects, and consider efforts required to successfully 

realize the expanded mission of WIPP anticipated during the upcoming contract period of 

performance. Would DOE consider including language in the RFP to reserve the flexibility to 

establish CPIF PBIs within the PEMP with a fee range more in line with the ESCM (15% 

maximum fee)? 

After further consideration DOE has decided to increase the performance fee Cap to 7% across all CLINs. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

87 Cover Letter Blecher to Prospective 

Offerors  WIPP M&O Final 

RFP Cover Letters to 

Perspective Offerors

Comment: Unfortunately, the due date and timing of this Solicitation for the WIPP M&O 

contract will impact the ability of highly qualified small businesses, who participated in the 

CTAC acquisition, to participate in the competition for the WIPP M&O contract.  Due to delays 

in the award of the CTAC, participating small business have had to remove themselves from 

the WIPP M&O competition due to the potential for OCI for the CTAC awardee. 

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

88 Cover Letter Blecher to Prospective 

Offerors  WIPP M&O Final 

RFP Cover Letters to 

Perspective Offerors

Comment:  There is an unfortunate overlap in the timing of the WIPP CTAC acquisition 

(Solicitation Number 89303320REM000073), which is a small business set-a-side, and this 

WIPP M&O solicitation, which requires that at least 20% of the work will be performed by 

small businesses.  The CTAC contract has not been awarded, while the M&O contract is now in 

it's formal proposal process.  Small businesses that have participated in the CTAC bid process 

cannot effectively enter teaming agreements for the 20% small business component of the 

M&O bids, and yet all but one of those small businesses will be available to support the M&O 

contract.  This would seem to place all of those small businesses that have participated in the 

WIPP CTAC procurement process at an unfair competitive disadvantage for the M&O contract, 

since the M&O bidding process is essentially not open to everyone.  How does EMCBC intend 

to restore a level playing field for those small businesses in the M&O procurement process?

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.



89 H.46 DOE-H-2035 Several small businesses are bidding on the CTAC contract, an SB Set Aside. When will the 

contract be awarded?  Proposals were submitted in December 2020.  Representations were 

made by DOE that it would be awarded in March or April and, at least,  before the M&O RFP 

was issued.  Many SBs relied on this guidance because, it they were not awarded CTAC, they 

could still be able to pursue subcontract work as part of an M&O team.  Reality is now that 

Offerors will not put them on if it creates an OCI.   

The WIPP M&O acquisition cannot comment on the status of other on-going procurements. After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the 

proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming amendment to the RFP.

90 L.20 Due Date We request that DOE extend the due date until August 6. We do not believe that 45 days is 

adequate for a level playing field.  There was no draft RFP. The requirements for key personnel 

are unique.  Forming a joint venture company is a 30+ process since the start of the pandemic.  

We believe that there are issues in the RFP that require resolution prior to being able to 

submit a compliant bid.

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

91 A/ L.20 Due Date We request that the proposal due date be moved from Monday to Wednesday, Thursday or 

Friday. This would align the time for upload to weekdays when there is upload assistance 

available if needed.

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

92 L.20 Due Date We request that DOE extend the due date until August 6. We do not believe that 45 days is 

adequate for a level playing field.  There was no draft RFP. The requirements for key personnel 

are unique.  Forming a joint venture company is a 30+ process since the start of the pandemic.  

We believe that there are issues in the RFP that require resolution prior to being able to 

submit a compliant bid.

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

93 Section A, SF 33 Duration for Proposal 

preparation

Would the DOE please extend the proposal due date to August 2?  This would provide a 60-

day preparation period to ensure quality proposals.  A 60-day timeline is also consistent with 

recent DOE procurements, especially given the challenges of continued pandemic restrictions 

and executing to a final RFP without a draft.

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

94 N/A CTAC The CTAC contract for WIPP has still not been issued, as of June 11, 2021. It was our 

understanding that this contract would have been awarded prior to the M&O RFP being 

issued. Some of the CTAC bidders may have wished to partner with other teams bidding

on the M&O, but may not be able to do so due to the previous bid being unresolved.

After further consideration DOE has decided to extend the proposal due date to August 3rd, 2021. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.

95 Section B Fee  The contractor fee schedule has been reduced from 7% to 5%, which represents about a 30% 

reduction. We are concerned that this could have a significant negative impact on education, 

economic development and vendor outreach.

After further consideration DOE has decided to increase the performance fee Cap to 7% across all CLINs. The revision will be reflected in an upcoming 

amendment to the RFP.


